
City of Jacksonville Beach 
Minutes of City Council 

FY 2018 -Budget Workshop 
Tuesday, August 7, 2018 - 5:00 P.M. 

Mayor Latham called the Budget Workshop to order at 5:00 P.M. 

City Council Members in attendance: 

Mayor Charlie Latham 
Christine Hoffman 
Bruce Thomason (absent) 

Staff in attendance: 

Phil Vogelsang 
Jeanell Wilson 

Keith Doherty 
Lee Buck 

Interim City Manager Karen Nelson, Budget Officer Ashlie Gossett, Finance Officer Michael 
Nadeau, Fire Chief David Whitmill and Police Chief Pat Dooley. 

Fire Department 

Interim City Manager Karen Nelson provided an overview of the Proposed Budget and Business 
Plan for the Fire Department. The Fire Department is staffed and equipped to respond to one single 
serious fire or three simultaneous emergency calls. We have automatic mutual aid agreements with 
City of Jacksonville and St. Johns County. 

ChiefWhitmill summarized the department's accomplishments. He stated there were no fire deaths 
in the past year. He also stated that the department's response time is an average of four minutes. 
The Chief also stated that all structure fires responded to were confined to the area involved. He 
reported that 801 fire safety surveys were completed in the past year, and 328 high hazard 
[restaurants, churches, schools] inspections were completed. The Chief explained 729 pre-plans 
were updated. 126 new smoke detectors were installed in homes, and 517 new batteries were 
installed in smoke detectors. Chief Whitmill stated over 8,072 hours of in-house training was 
completed. The Fire Department installed and/or educated 237 families on the proper installation 
of child safety seats. The department also conducted city-wide training and exercises in hurricane 
preparedness. 

Chief Whitmill summarized the Fire Department's FY2018/2019 goals to be zero fire-related 
deaths, containing 90% of fires to the area in which they started and to continue the 100% customer 
services results of excellent or good service. 

Chief Whitmill discussed the department's performance measures highlighting that the average 
response time is under four minutes for 70% of the time and under six minutes 90% of the time. 
ChiefWhitmill also added that 69% of the department's calls are medical related, 29% of the calls 
are regarding hazardous conditions, and 2% are structural fire related. 

Ms. Nelson stated the Fire budget had increased 6.2% from last year due to IAFF union contract 
changes as well as pension and health insurance increases. The increase in Capital Outlay is due to 

WS l 80807min - FY2018 Workshop Page I of3 



Minutes ofFY201 8 Budget Workshop 
Tuesday, August 7, 20 18 

$39,500 to replace one of the Zoll Cardiac Monitors and $36,264 for replacement of the SCBA 
(Self Contained Breathing Apparatus) compressor and fill station. 

Ms. Nelson stated a purchase order had been issued for replacement of the current SQ-13 
Freightliner Pumper. Approximately $375,000 is included in the current FY2018 budget. 

Ms. Nelson stated the Fire Department takes a pro-active approach for Emergency Preparedness 
and updates the Municipal Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (MCEMP) annually. 

Police Department 

Ms. Nelson provided an overview of the staffing for the Police Department. The staffing level 
remains at 102, which includes 67 sworn officers. 

Ms. Nelson provided an overview of the Proposed Budget and Business Plan for the Police 
Department. 

Police Chief, Pat Dooley reviewed the function and structure of the department as well as the factors 
that influence the crime rate such as social economics, the courts, state attorney and the jail system. 
Chief Dooley stated the Police Department partners with many other agencies to reduce crime. 
Chief Dooley stated the department had many innovative programs such as Downtown CAPE, 
South Pablo Beach CAPE, Community Response Team (CRT) and specialized DUI and traffic 
enforcement. 

Chief Dooley summarized the different Police Divisions and their costs (Ancillary Services Section, 
Communication Section, Records Section, Property/Evidence Section, Accreditation Unit, Animal 
Control, Paid Parking/Security Unit and the Volunteer Programs). 

Chief Dooley highlighted the following area: 
• The Patrol Division received 56,813 calls for service. There were 82,466 officer responses 

to those calls for service. [more than one officer could be dispatched to the call] 
• The Traffic Unit received a new Smart Trailer that will enhance the monitoring of traffic 

speed and the ability to display safety messages to drivers. 
• One of the two K-9 units would be replaced due to one of the units retiring. 
• 23 years of accreditation by the National Commission on Accreditation for Law 

Enforcement Agencies, Inc. (CALEA) 

Chief Dooley stated the Downtown CAPE Officers are working as (and with) Code Enforcement 
to assist with ensuring compliance to all the City's codes. The Downtown CAPE has initiated a 
Responsible Vendor program to assist with additional training for local businesses owners. 

Chief Dooley discussed the average response time to emergency calls is 2.40 minutes and 5.01 
minutes for non-emergency calls. He stated there had been a decrease in violent crimes overall by 
3% from 2013 to 2017. Chief Dooley stated 141 intoxicated drivers were removed from the 
roadways in the past year. 

WS I 0807min - FY201 8 Workshop Page2 of3 



Minutes ofFY2018 Budget Workshop 
Tuesday, August 7, 2018 

Ms. Nelson reviewed the Financial Summary and stated the increase to Personal Services are 
primarily due to the union contracts pay schedule increase of 4% on October 1, 2018, in addition 
to annual merit increases. 

Ms. Nelson reviewed the Special Revenue Funds and explained grant expenditures are budgeted 
when the grant award is received and approved by Council. 

Chief Dooley explained Chevrolet has stopped making Police cars. Ford would stop making Police 
cars after September 2018. Chief Dooley stated if the department waited to until October 1 to issue 
a purchase order, only SUV's could be purchased and would cost more. 

Chief Dooley stated he would issue the purchase order for five police cars for this year and for next 
budget year to assure delivery of the vehicles near the beginning of next year. The same purchasing 
scheduled would be used for the additional vehicle scheduled for purchase for the Downtown CAPE 
Program. 

Chief Dooley stated the CRA had been notified the vehicle would be purchased before the end of 
the fiscal year. 

Mayor Latham expressed appreciation for the work the Police Department does. 

The workshop adjourned at 5:57 P.M. 

Submitted by: Jodilynn Byrd 
Administrative Assistant 

WS 10807min - FY2018 Workshop 

Approved: 

Date: 

Page 3 of 3 


